
 

 
Agenda No. 2012–08 April 23, 2012 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO.2012–08 

REGULAR MEETING April 23, 2012 
FAIRBANKSCITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 

PRELIMINARY MEETING 
 

I 6:00 PM Implementation Status of the Joint Land Use Study 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
II 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for Public 

Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to speak needs to 
complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards of decorum and courtesy 
should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should be directed to the City Council as 
a body rather than to any particular Council Member or member of the staff.  In 
consideration of others, kindly silence all cell phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member so 
requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Application for 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 1 of 54



 

 
Agenda No. 2012–08 April 23, 2012 Page 2 of 3 

Commercial Refuse Collector Permit.  Public Testimony will be taken and 
limited to five (5) minutes.   

  Applicant:  Waste Connections of Alaska, Inc. 
  D/B/A:   Alaska Waste-Interior, LLC 
  Address:  3941 Easy Street 
 
 NOTE:  FGC Sec. 14-366 Requires City Council to take final action on all 

applications for commercial refuse collector licenses.   
 
b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 

interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License 
Application(s) for renewal.  Public Testimony will be taken and limited to 
five (5) minutes.   

Lic # Establishment Name License Type Premise Location Owner Name 

104 Red Lantern Steak & Spirits Beverage Dispensary 820 Noble Street Westmark Hotels, Inc. 

252 Club Alaskan Beverage Dispensary 901 Old Steese Hwy Jerwater, Inc. 

435 Garden Island Party Store Package Store 246 Illinois Street Market Basket, Inc. 

703 Gavora’s Liquor #1 Package Store 250 Third Street Graehl Market Basket, Inc. 

704 Gavora’s Liquor #2 Package Store 1255 Airport Way Market Basket, Inc. 

884 Pizza Hut R/E Place 1990 Airport Way Kurani, Inc. 

1134 Thrifty Liquors Package Store 1410 Cushman Street Market Basket, Inc. 

1475 Pizza Hut #5 R/E Place 89 College Road Kurani, Inc. 

1920 Reflections Beverage Dispensary 2406 S Cushman St The Lighthouse, Inc. 

2424 Sophie Station Hotel 
Beverage 

Dispensary–Tourism 
1717 University Ave S 

Fountainhead 
Development, Inc. 

2565 El Dorado Bar & Grill Beverage Dispensary 530 Third Avenue El Dorado Bar & Grill Inc 

2851 Shenanigan’s Beverage Dispensary 2406 S Cushman St Tiffany Park West, Inc. 

3074 Wedgewood Resort 
Beverage 

Dispensary–Tourism 
212 Wedgewood Dr 

Fountainhead 
Development, Inc. 

3170 The Odom Corporation Wholesale – General 3101 Peger Road–Bay 1 Odom Corporation 

3489 Arctic Bar Beverage Dispensary 623 Old Steese Hwy Arctic Inuk, Inc. 

3616 
Wedgewood Resort – Bear 
Lodge 

Bev Dispensary – 
Tourism Duplicate 

212 Wedgewood Dr 
Fountainhead 
Development, Inc. 

3969 Tony’s  Beverage Dispensary 537 Gaffney Road Full Moon, Inc. 

3997 BPO Elks Lodge #1551 Club 1003 Pioneer Road BPO Elks Lodge #1551 

4174 
Big Daddy’s Bar-B-Q & 
Banquet Hall 

Beverage Dispensary 107 Wickersham St RTG, LLC 

4247 Brewster’s Beverage Dispensary 3578 Airport Way 
Restaurant Concepts, 
LLC 

4530 The Hide Out Beverage Dispensary 1288 Sadler Way Xavier’s, Inc. 

4819 The Antler Room Beverage Dispensary 1003 Pioneer Rd #A The Antler Room, Inc. 

4833 Odom Corporation Wholesale – General 1200 Well St – Bay 1 Odom Corporation 

4968 Xavier’s Boom Boom Room 
Beverage Dispensary 

– Dup. 
1288 Sadler Way Xavier’s, Inc. 

4720 Trappers Tavern Beverage Dispensary No Premise Taco Azteca, Inc. 

 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 2 of 54



 

 
Agenda No. 2012–08 April 23, 2012 Page 3 of 3 

8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a) Ordinance No. 5881 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code 
by Adding Section 46-329 Abuse of 911 System.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4522 – A Resolution Denying the Use of City Resources, 
and urging the State of Alaska to Deny Use of its Resources, in any 
Unconstitutional Federal Suspension of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to 
Section 1021 of the National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA).  
Introduced by Council Member Hilling. 

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

a) Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

*a) Chena Riverfront Commission Meeting Minutes of February 27, 2012 
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 3 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 4 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 5 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 6 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 7 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 8 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 9 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 10 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 11 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 12 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 13 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 14 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 15 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 16 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 17 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 18 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 19 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 20 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 21 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 22 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 23 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 24 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 25 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 26 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 27 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 28 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 29 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 30 of 54



  City of Fairbanks   Office of the City Clerk 

                  800 Cushman Street  Fairbanks, AK  99701       (907)459-6715 
                    Fax  (907)459-6710 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

TO:  Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
  City Council Members 
 
FROM: Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Renewal of Liquor Licenses 
 
DATE:  April 18, 2012 

 

Attached you will find the notification of liquor license renewals from the State ABC Board for 
the following liquor licenses.  You will also find responses received from the Finance, Fire and 
Police Departments: 

Lic # Establishment Name License Type Premise Location Owner Name 

104 
Red Lantern Steak & 
Spirits 

Beverage 
Dispensary 

820 Noble Street Westmark Hotels, Inc. 

252 Club Alaskan 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
901 Old Steese Hwy Jerwater, Inc. 

435 Garden Island Party Store Package Store 246 Illinois Street Market Basket, Inc. 

703 Gavora’s Liquor #1 Package Store 250 Third Street Graehl Market Basket, Inc. 

704 Gavora’s Liquor #2 Package Store 1255 Airport Way Market Basket, Inc. 

884 Pizza Hut R/E Place 1990 Airport Way Kurani, Inc. 

1134 Thrifty Liquors Package Store 1410 Cushman Street Market Basket, Inc. 

1475 Pizza Hut #5 R/E Place 89 College Road Kurani, Inc. 

1920 Reflections 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
2406 S Cushman St The Lighthouse, Inc. 

2424 Sophie Station Hotel 
Beverage 

Dispensary–
Tourism 

1717 University Ave S 
Fountainhead 
Development, Inc. 

*2565 El Dorado Bar & Grill 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
530 Third Avenue 

El Dorado Bar & Grill 
Inc 

2851 Shenanigan’s 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
2406 S Cushman St Tiffany Park West, Inc. 

3074 Wedgewood Resort 
Beverage 

Dispensary–
Tourism 

212 Wedgewood Dr 
Fountainhead 
Development, Inc. 

3170 The Odom Corporation 
Wholesale – 

General 
3101 Peger Road–Bay 1 Odom Corporation 

**3489 Arctic Bar 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
623 Old Steese Hwy Arctic Inuk, Inc. 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 31 of 54



Renewal of Liquor Licenses (25) 
April 18, 2012 (April 23, 2012 CCM)  
Page 2 
 

Visit Us on the Web at www.ci.fairbanks.ak.us 

 

Lic # Establishment Name License Type Premise Location Owner Name 

3616 
Wedgewood Resort – Bear 
Lodge 

Bev Dispensary – 
Tourism Duplicate 

212 Wedgewood Dr 
Fountainhead 
Development, Inc. 

3969 Tony’s  
Beverage 

Dispensary 
537 Gaffney Road Full Moon, Inc. 

3997 BPO Elks Lodge #1551 Club 1003 Pioneer Road BPO Elks Lodge #1551 

4174 
Big Daddy’s Bar-B-Q & 
Banquet Hall 

Beverage 
Dispensary 

107 Wickersham St RTG, LLC 

4247 Brewster’s 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
3578 Airport Way 

Restaurant Concepts, 
LLC 

4530 The Hide Out 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
1288 Sadler Way Xavier’s, Inc. 

4819 The Antler Room 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
1003 Pioneer Rd #A The Antler Room, Inc. 

4833 Odom Corporation 
Wholesale – 

General 
1200 Well St – Bay 1 Odom Corporation 

4968 
Xavier’s Boom Boom 
Room 

Beverage 
Dispensary – 

Dup. 
1288 Sadler Way Xavier’s, Inc. 

4720 Trappers Tavern 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
No Premise Taco Azteca, Inc. 

 
Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-178 the Council must determine whether or not to protest liquor license 
renewals after holding a public hearing.   
  
*The Fire Department recommends protest for the Eldorado Bar & Grill, License #2565, 
until satisfactory completion of repairs and renovation of building and fire code violations.   
 
** The Finance Department recommends protest for the Arctic Bar, License # 3489, until 
payment in full of all outstanding sales tax, penalties and/or interest is received.   
 
Please note that there are no other departmental protests.   
 
Please contact me if you need any further information.  

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 32 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 33 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 34 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 35 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 36 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 37 of 54



 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 38 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 39 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 40 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 41 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 42 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 43 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 44 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 45 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 46 of 54



Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 47 of 54



Sponsored by: Mayor Cleworth  
Introduced: April 9, 2012 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5881 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE BY 
ADDING SECTION 46-329 ABUSE OF 911 SYSTEM  

 
 WHEREAS, the 911 telephone system is a critical component in the emergency response 
system; and 
 

 WHEREAS, abuses of this system waste 911 dispatcher’s valuable time and potentially 
delay the response of emergency personnel to true emergencies, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1.  That Fairbanks General Code, Chapter 46, Article VII, is amended by adding 
Section 46-329 as follows:   
 

Sec. 46-329. Abuse of 911 system.   
 
  (a)  Any person who, after being warned that their use of the 911 telephone 
system is improper, uses the 911 telephone system for any reason other than 
because of an emergency is guilty of an infraction.   
 
  (b)  For purposes of this section “emergency” means any condition in which a 
reasonable person would believe emergency services will result in the saving of a 
life, a reduction in the destruction of property, quicker apprehension of a criminal, 
assistance with potentially life-threatening medical problems, a fire, a need for 
rescue, an imminent potential crime, or a similar situation in which immediate 
assistance is required.  “Emergency” also includes calls to 911 the purpose of 
which is to prevent an emergency response from being initiated when no such 
response is needed.   
 
  (c)  A person convicted under subsection (a) is subject to a fine of $250.00.   
    

Section 2. That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be ________________, 2012. 
 
 
             
       Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       ____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, City Clerk    Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 48 of 54



Introduced By: Council Member Hilling  
Date:  April 23, 2012 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 4522 

 
A RESOLUTION DENYING THE USE OF CITY RESOURCES, AND URGING THE 

STATE OF ALASKA TO DENY USE OF ITS RESOURCES, IN ANY 
UNCONSTITUTIONAL FEDERAL SUSPENSION OF HABEAS CORPUS PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 1021 OF THE NATIONAL DEFENSE AUTHORIZATION ACT (NDAA) 

 
WHEREAS, the United States Constitution assures all citizens the right to habeas 

corpus, that is, the right to demand that the arresting authority show legal cause for detention; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, legal cause for detention must conform to the Fourth Amendment 

outlawing any unreasonable seizure of persons, the Fifth Amendment requiring due process in 
any deprivation of liberty, and the Sixth Amendment assuring speedy and public trial; and 

 
WHEREAS, the only exception to such legal causes for detention is found in Article 1, 

Section 9, of the U. S. Constitution, which reads, “The privilege of the Writ of Habeas Corpus 
shall not be suspended, unless when in Cases of Rebellion or Invasion the public Safety may 
require it”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Tenth Amendment reserves all powers and rights to the people and the 

states, except those delegated to the federal government by the U. S. Constitution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the power of habeas corpus suspension, as legislated to the federal 

government in Section 1021 of the NDAA of 2012, includes the power to detain any person 
"who was part of or substantially supported al-Qaeda, the Taliban, or associated forces that are 
engaged in hostilities against the United States or its coalition partners," and anyone who 
commits a "belligerent act" against the U.S. or its coalition allies in aid of such enemy forces, 
under the law of war, "without trial until the end of the hostilities"; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 1021 thus oversteps the clear meaning of Article 1, Section 9, 
insofar as it grants the federal government power of unlimited detention of American citizens 
without charge or trial without defining or specifying conformity to the meanings of “rebellion,” 
“invasion,” “hostilities” or “public safety” as these terms constitutionally should be understood 
by Article 1, Section 9; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor of the City of Fairbanks and the Governor and Legislature of the 

State of Alaska have taken oaths to support the Constitution of the United States; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that (1)  the Mayor of the City of Fairbanks 

refuse to permit the expenditure of resources to conform to any federal request or mandate which 
should overstep the power granted in Article 1, Section 9, of the U.S. Constitution; (2) the 
Governor of the State of Alaska be hereby urged to do the same; and (3) the Legislature of the 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 49 of 54



Resolution No. 4522 
Page 2 

 

State of Alaska be hereby urged to enact a statute requiring same; and (4) the Congress of the 
United States must repeal Section 1021 or reformulate it by specifying exactly how it shall 
conform to Article 1, Section 9, suspending habeas corpus. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED this 23rd Day of April, 2012.   
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:   
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________   __________________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, City Clerk CMC   Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 50 of 54



 
 

Fairbanks North Star Borough / City of Fairbanks 

CHENA RIVERFRONT COMMISSION 

DESIGN COMMITTEE MEETING 

MINUTES 

February 27, 2012 

 

 
 
A special meeting of the Chena Riverfront Commission Design Committee was held in the Ester 
Conference Room, 809 Pioneer Road, Fairbanks, Alaska.  The meeting was called to order at 
12:00 p.m. by Kelley Hegarty Lammers, Chair.   
 
1.  ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENT: Kelley Hegarty Lammers, Chair 
 Bob Henszey 
 Anna Plager (by phone) 
 Lee Wood 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Sarah Schacher, DOT 
 Bernando Hernandez, Department of Community Planning 
 Mark Mussman, FNSB Planner 
 Bobette McKirgan, Recording Clerk 
 
2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
A proposal made by Hegarty Lammers to re-order the agenda items was met with no objection.  
 
The re-ordered agenda was approved without objection after a motion by Henszey, seconded by 
Wood.   
 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
None 
 
4.  NEW BUSINESS (Re-ordered) 
 
A.  Ice Alaska Site Planning Issues Along the Chena River 
 
Hegarty Lammers said the goal for the committee was to come up with a recommendation as 
to how Ice Alaska might consider revising their site plan and take that to the commission as a 
whole.   
 
Mussman presented the Ice Alaska location and site plan on the overhead and explained how 
the present event was structured.  Mussman pointed out the parcels approved for rezone.  
Mussman mentioned special limitations and pointed out the waterway protection overlay along 
the slough, noting it would remain a riparian area, adding it was fifty feet from the water’s 
edge/meander/property line.   
 
Wood commented that this meant Ice Alaska could do what they need to do in the winter and 
asked whether ice carvings were set back fifty feet.  Mussman said Community Planning 
received a complaint about chainsaws being operated within the fifty foot waterway protection 
overlay.  Mussman said a site visit revealed there had been some brush clearing approximately  
 
Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 51 of 54



Chena Riverfront Design Committee Meeting          -2-       February 27, 2012 
 
 
75-100 feet from the property line.   
 
Hegarty Lammers asked whether any new uses were proposed for the remaining three 
parcels.  Mussman said one of the big issues is the proposed artists’ village, which includes a 
four season destination attraction.  Mussman said Brickley told him Ice Alaska is open to 
suggestions by the CRFC.  Mussman said he reminded Brickley of the need for replacing the 
rezone sign that had been removed.   
 
Mussman said the Assembly approved the three northern lots with the site plan and special 
limitations.  Mussman said the Assembly remanded the southern parcels back to the Planning 
Commission and wants the ordinance reintroduced no later than June 14th.  He said the 
Planning Commission should make recommendation by their May 15th meeting. 
 
Hegarty Lammers said the plan was to determine CRFC’s preferences and then meet with Ice 
Alaska to discuss the CRFC’s proposal.  Hernandez suggested scheduling around the Planning 
Commission’s May 1st meeting.  It was agreed to invite Ice Alaska to work sessions on April 9th 
and, tentatively, April 23rd, which would also allow Mussman time to produce his staff report.     
 
Mussman said the Ice Alaska plan, as submitted, is what they would like approved; and added 
it would be subject to the conditions of the approved rezone.  Henszey said he would like the 
waterway protection overlay added.  Mussman pointed out the fifty foot setback on the 
overhead and noted that it came close to the existing pond.  Mussman said some cabins might 
encroach on the waterway protection overlay, noting there was no waterway protection against 
the pond.  He said approximately 25 cabins would be located on the northern three parcels and 
about 170 on the southern property.  Mussman said he would recommend a site plan be 
presented to scale.  With regard to renting artists’ cabins, Hernandez said that Community 
Planning does not approve land use based on whether something is a rental, as the use is the 
same.    
   
Wood questioned funding for the purchase of the southern parcels.  Mussman said borough 
funding was for purchase of the property currently in use.  Wood wanted to know if it’s pretty 
sure that Ice Alaska would be able to purchase the property and Mussman said no.  Mussman 
added that in order to develop cabins, community water and sewer would be required; and that 
boundary alteration and permits would be required.  Hegarty Lammers noted funding was a 
primary concern as to whether the project would happen.   
 
Mussman said the rezone approval would be tied to a specific plan, allowing for slight 
modifications.  Mussman said, for example, there would be limitations to the number of cabins 
on the river and if that were exceeded, it would become an issue.  Mussman recommended Ice 
Alaska provide more detail on the appearance of the cabins.  He said the borough had more 
teeth and muscle for enforcement when special limitations were violated than on a normal 
zoning ordinance violation. 
 
Hernandez cautioned that if dialogue were going to include all of the committee’s concerns, the 
applicant should be present.  Hegarty Lammers replied this meeting was a work session to 
gain understanding of the project and the goal was to come up with an alternate proposal, take 
that to the full commission and then invite Ice Alaska to a work session.  Hernandez added that 
his concern was that if something were to be proposed to Ice Alaska, it might be good to have 
their input and he wanted to make sure to stay on the side of fairness to the applicant.  
Mussman said that Ice Alaska would be open to consider modifications from the CRFC and he 
could pass on any specific concerns the committee had to Brickley.   
 
 
 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 52 of 54



Chena Riverfront Design Committee Meeting          -3-       February 27, 2012 
 
 
B.  Gateway Feature Committee Report  
 
Hegarty Lammers reported that the Gateway Feature Committee met and there was a lot of 
discussion about allowing plenty of opportunity for the public to participate in the process.   
 
Hegarty Lammers said a motion was passed at a recent FMATS policy committee meeting to 
have the cement feature in the contractor’s scope of work removed.  Hegarty Lammers added 
it was anticipated that DOT would consider this a change order and said Gardino encouraged 
attendance at the FMATS policy committee meeting for discussion of this item.  Henszey asked 
whether this was just taking it out of the RFP and not physically removing it and Hegarty 
Lammers replied yes.  Schacher suggested it would be hasty to remove it because the final 
design may end up using something similar.   
 
Plager said it was important that the apex be finished appropriately and was unsure how it 
would be handled by DOT, if not done by the contractor.  Plager said that removing all the 
concrete might be an excessive response to having some latitude regarding placement of art, 
noting the need for a finished surface at the apex.  Hegarty Lammers said the next meeting 
would include a work session on access to the site and part of the resolution addresses the 
finish of the apex, including landscaping and pathways.  Plager suggested this would come out 
of funding for the gateway feature and Hegarty Lammers said Gardino advised it would not.    
 
Henszey asked Schacher whether there was a back-up plan for grass if the concrete were 
removed from the RFP.  Schacher said her first reaction was that removing items could 
sometimes result in cost implications and she suggested the committee stay in contact with the 
DOT project manager.     
 
Hegarty Lammers added that Gardino would like the minutes to reflect the title FMATS Art 
Selection Committee.       
  
C.  Waterway Overlay Review 
 
Hernandez explained that there is a waterway setback zone along the river that allows for some 
construction.  Hernandez said the waterway protection overlay zone protects natural vegetation 
and is more restrictive with regard to development.  Mussman added that waterway protection 
applies along Noyes Slough and anything else is prohibited or requires a conditional use permit, 
noting this covers the current proposal.   
 
Hegarty Lammers introduced the Project Checklist for Chena Riverfront Review draft that 
Plager developed as a starting point for review of riverfront projects.  Hegarty Lammers said 
this would help limit comments to the Chena Riverfront Plan and help determine whether the Ice 
Alaska site plan is consistent with the plan.    
 
Wood noted it would be easy to cherry-pick the Chena Riverfront Plan but in reality not sure 
there is anything the commission can do.  Hernandez said you have to review the plan and can 
ask an applicant to consider doing something else.  Hegarty Lammers thought there may be 
goals and objectives included in the plan that protect a site like Ice Alaska’s.   
 
Henszey agreed with Wood’s concerns about out of character huts along the Chena River.  He 
said he would like to see a map that is to scale and a business plan.  Hernandez noted that 
business plans are not required as part of the Community Planning zoning process.  Plager 
would like a more detailed site plan superimposed on an aerial photo of the site, and more detail 
of the cabins.  She suggested working with Ice Alaska to identify goals and fine tune their plan, 
using some of the goals included in her project checklist.   
 

Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 53 of 54



Chena Riverfront Design Committee Meeting          -4-       February 27, 2012 
 
 
Hegarty Lammers said it would be unreasonable to ask Ice Alaska for a development plan 
before their current event is over.  She thought it would be a good starting point to overlay their 
informal plan and show Ice Alaska that things may not fit as anticipated.  Henszey will assist 
Mussman to produce this overlay. 
 
Plager would like to talk to Ice Alaska about different ways they could adjust their plan to better 
meet the goals of the Chena Riverfront Plan. 
 
Hegarty Lammers would like more design detail on the cabins.  Plager preferred to see a 
phased approach and said it would be great to work with Ice Alaska to develop a concept for the 
existing property and have some flexibility for future planning on the lower properties.    
 
Henszey asked whether the borough can regulate or recommend phasing and Hernandez said 
maybe with limitations, but for rezones and special limitations, it would need to be investigated.  
Mussman added that he was not under the impression the artists’ village was intended for the 
first phase.   
 
Hegarty Lammers wanted to limit the committee’s participation to meeting minutes and present 
their ideas to the commission as a whole.  She added this would prepare the committee for their 
work session with Ice Alaska.   
 
D.  Procedure for Evaluating Development along the Chena River 
 
Hegarty Lammers questioned whether Community Planning needed a detailed list.  She saw 
the draft Plager provided as an ideal way to achieve the goals and objectives of the plan, 
adding it would need to be approved by the Planning Commission and Assembly.  Hegarty 
Lammers said that consideration should be given to the current political makeup of the 
Assembly and what was likely to be adopted.   
 
Plager said her draft plan was a first try to determine measurable objectives and she patterned 
the concept after DNR’s coastal management plan.  Plager suggested organizing like topics 
together, noting her plan was a rough cut and felt she could reorganize the draft in hope of 
using the plan to simplify the process for borough staff.   
   
Hernandez felt it inappropriate to comment, as he had not had time to review the plan and 
suggested the commission present a proposal to him.  Mussman added that it would be a huge 
help to staff when procedures are established to determine when and how to inform the CRFC 
of projects.   
 
Hernandez wanted commissioners to consider that the applicant should be invited, notices 
placed in the paper, the riverfront plan policies needed to be followed, and notification given to 
the chair, vice chair, or all of the commission.  Hernandez added that when there is going to be 
a recommendation to the staff, there should be a quorum.       
 
5.  AGENDA SETTING FOR March 12, 2012 DESIGN COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

A.  Ice Alaska Site Planning Issues 
B.  Gateway Feature Committee Progress 
C.  Procedure for Evaluating Development Along the Chena River 

 
6.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:36 p.m. after a motion by Henszey, seconded by Wood. 

/b 
Agenda Packet - April 23, 2012 Page 54 of 54


	AGENDA - April 23, 2012
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Commercial Refuse Collector
	Liquor License Renewals

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5881

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4522

	COMMUNICATIONS
	CRF Commission - 02/27/2012




